ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON THE ARCTI C
February 19, 2015
11: 16 a. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Cathy G essel, Co-Chair
Senator Lesil MQuire, Co-Chair
Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senator Gary Stevens

Senat or Donal d d son

Senat or Cick Bishop

Senat or John Coghi | |

Senator Berta Gardner

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

COWM TTEE SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BILL NO 1(EDA) AM
"An Act declaring the Arctic policy of the state.™

HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 1

SHORT TI TLE: STATE ARCTI C PQOLI CY
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) HERRON

01/ 21/ 15 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 9/ 15

01/ 21/ 15 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 21/ 15 (H) EDA, STA

01/ 27/ 15 (H EDA AT 10: 15 AM BARNES 124

01/ 27/ 15 (H) Heard & Hel d

01/ 27/ 15 (H) M NUTE( EDA)

02/ 05/ 15 (H) EDA AT 11:30 AM BARNES 124

02/ 05/ 15 (H) Moved CSHB 1(EDA) Qut of Committee
02/ 05/ 15 (H) M NUTE( EDA)

02/ 06/ 15 (H) EDA RPT CS(EDA) 1DP 5NR

02/ 06/ 15 (H) DP:  HERRON

SENATE ARC COWM TTEE -1- February 19, 2015



02/ 06/ 15 (H NR.  JOHNSON, TILTON, WOOL, ORTI Z,
STUTES

02/ 10/ 15 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 10/ 15 (H Moved CSHB 1(EDA) OQut of Cormmittee

02/ 10/ 15 (H) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 11/ 15 (H) STA RPT CS(EDA) 3DP 1NR 2AM

02/ 11/ 15 (H DP: TALERI CO, STUTES, LYNN

02/ 11/ 15 (H) NR. KELLER

02/ 11/ 15 (H) AM KREI SS- TOMKI NS, GRUENBERG

02/ 13/ 15 (H TRANSM TTED TO (S)

02/ 13/ 15 (H) VERSI ON: CSHB 1( EDA) AM

02/ 18/ 15 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS

02/ 18/ 15 (S) ARC, STA

02/ 19/ 15 (S) ARC AT 11:15 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE BOB HERRON

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of HB 1.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

11:16: 31 AM

COCHAIR LESIL MCGQU RE called the Senate Special Conmttee on
the Arctic neeting to order at 11:16 a.m Present at the call
to order were Senators Hoffrman, Stevens, Coghill, Co-Chair
G essel, and Co-Chair MQuire. Senators O son and Bishop arrived
shortly thereafter

Vi deo: "The Arctic"

11:17: 22 AM

COCHAIR MCGQUIRE said the commttee neeting would begin by
watching a video entitled "The Arctic", produced by the
Institute of the North, in conjunction with others. The novie
portrays the beauty and lifestyle of the people in None,
Kot zebue, and Barrow. It depicts the need to consider the voices
of the people in the Arctic in all resource devel oprment
deci si ons.

11: 26: 26 AM

COCHAIR MCAU RE noted the filmis available to all who would
like it. She noted recent decisions by the federal governnent
that do not include Al askans. She shared the thene of the video,

SENATE ARC COWM TTEE - 2- February 19, 2015



"We're neeting you; are you neeting us half way?" She stressed
that the federal government nust listen to the people of Al aska.

She nmentioned a resolution on the Senate floor where there was
testinmony in Barrow that the Native people living there would
like to see the Arctic National WIldlife Refuge (ANWR) drained
because elders know there has been forty years of success in
mai ntai ning the Porcupine Caribou herd as well as success in
growi ng jobs. She concluded that the people in the video are
saying, "Please listen.” She thanked the Institute of the North
for assisting the Al aska Arctic Policy Comm ssion (AAPC) in this
endeavor.

HB 1- STATE ARCTI C POLI CY

COCHAIR MCGQU RE stated that the commttee would take up HB 1,
an Act declaring the Arctic policy for the state. [CSHB 1( EDA) AM
was before the conmmttee.] She related that HB 1 and its
conpanion bill SB 16 are the products of the Alaska Arctic
Policy Comm ssion's work over the last two years. She said she
and Representative Bob Herron served as co-chairs of AAPC. She
noted that Senators O son, Stevens, and G essel also served on
t he conmm ssion and worked on the bill.

CO- CHAIR MCQUI RE noted the presence of Senator O son and Senator
St evens.

COCHAIR G ESSEL nobved to adopt the proposed SCS for CSHB 1,
version 29-LS0013\S, as the working docunent. There being no
obj ection, version S was before the conmttee.

11: 30: 07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE BOB HERRON, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor of
HB 1, explained that the bill is AAPC s statutory responsibility
to deliver a bill that all 26 nmenbers worked on. The report has

three products, the Final Report, the Inplenentation Plan, and
Executive Sunmary. He said HB 1 puts people first and wll
benefit the entire state. It strengthens Alaska' s position in
the Arctic with the federal governnent and other Arctic nations,

and will lead to economc benefit in the Arctic region.

He said there are eight findings in Section 1 of the bill. The
one that is the nost inportant is that Al askans are Arctic
experts. He related in Section 2, the bill declares the Arctic
policy wll uphold the state's comitnent to economcally

vi br ant comunities sust ai ned by devel opnent activities
consistent wth the state's responsibility for a health

SENATE ARC COWM TTEE - 3- February 19, 2015



environnment, collaborate wth all appropriate entities to
achieve transparency and inclusiveness in Arctic decision
maki ng, enhance Al aska security, and strengthen the resilience
of communities and integrate |ocal know edge. The Arctic policy
of the state includes pronoting econom c devel opnent, addressing
the infrastructure gap in the Arctic, supporting healthy
cormunities, and strengthening Al askan Arctic science and
resear ch.

11: 32: 08 AM
REPRESENTATI VE HERRON stated support for version S. He clarified
that on page 4, line 22, the words "resource nanagenent deci sion

maki ng" were del eted. He said he thought the comm ssion's target
was the federal governnent. He said he explained to Secretary
Jewell that the state is the local jurisdiction and should be
included. In spite of concern for that part of the sentence, he
sai d he supports the SCS

11: 34: 03 AM

SENATOR COLSON pointed out that there also has been a deletion
related to the ratification of the Law of the Sea. He requested
Representative Herron's conments.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON said there was not unaninous support by
the conmmission to include that provision, however, there was a
healthy dialogue. In the end, it is an issue before the Senate

He concluded that it is out of place in this docunment which
relates to Arctic policy. He agreed that the Law of the Sea is
inmportant to many in the state, but Al aska needs to address its
relationship with the federal governnent.

SENATOR HOFFMAN referred to Representative Herron's conments on
resource managenent decisions and said the federal governnent is
going to contact and involve people of the Arctic, particularly
those in the Northwest Arctic Borough and in the North Sl ope. He
suggested there should be a dial ogue whether that wordi ng should
be included or not in the docunent. By excluding it, it seemns
that the federal governnment, on those issues, are going to
contact the people of the Arctic. He enphasized that the federal
government should al so consult the state of Al aska.

11: 36: 20 AM

SENATOR COGHI LL agreed. He said line 23 (b) is inportant. It is
not a subset, but a main point. "Enhances security of the Arctic
Regi on" would be a subset of that main point. He opined it is
enphatically stated. He said he could go either way on it.

SENATE ARC COWM TTEE -4- February 19, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE HERRON pointed out that there has been vigorous
debate in previous hearings. He recalled the nodel |egislation
which becane HB 1 and SB 16 was not about coastal zone
managenment. He noted the deletion is not a deal breaker. He
enphasi zed that Artic policy is about the state dealing with the
f eder al governnent and other international countries, not
i nternal issues.

11: 38: 51 AM
SENATOR OLSON spoke as the senator nost inpacted by federal
deci sions. He concurred with Senator Hof frman's comrents.

SENATOR COGHILL referred to the intent |anguage on page 1 of the
bill. It includes the entirety of the state and residents of the
state. He suggested it should be in the codifying section of the
bill.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked for clarification.

CO CHAIR MCGUI RE expl ained that the commttee is working off of
the S draft and conparing it to I.A version of the bill [that
passed the House.] The |anguage being discussed is found in
version S on page 4, lines 21 and 22 (E). In version I.A it is
found on page 4, lines 23-25. The conparison is between the old
| anguage "to encourage nore effective integration of |ocal and
traditional know edge into conventional science, research, and
resource nmanagenent decision meking," and the new draft, which
del etes "resource nmanagenent decision nmaking." She summarized
t hat Senat or Hof fman requested the old version renain.

SENATOR COGHI LL said he m ssed the point and was thinking about
including the state. However, the sponsor is saying it refers to
strengthening the debate within the state.

SENATOR HOFFMAN asked how to include the idea, but not in this
section, in order to nmake the point at the federal |evel that
the state needs to be consulted on resource nmnagenent issues

He stressed the inportance of the state being at the table. He
added that it was the nessage at the neeting in Kotzebue.

11:42: 40 AM
REPRESENTATI VE HERRON pointed out that nmany repeated this
nessage to Secretary Jewell in private and in public

di scussions. The national strategy for the Arctic Region and the
| at est presidential executive order enphatically state that they
will consult and have dialogue with the state of Al aska and
Al askan indi genous people. He added that Alaska has internal

SENATE ARC COW TTEE - 5- February 19, 2015



debate about resource nanagenment decision naking, but this
wording is a clear message that the feds "will do what they said
they would do." He agreed that it is not elsewhere in the
uncodi fied section.

SENATOR HOFFMAN nmaintained that it needs to be included
somewhere. He stated that the federal government is going to
consult the indigenous people on many different levels. W, as a
state, want to also be at the table along with everyone else
regardi ng resource devel opnent. Excluding the wording gives nore
power to the indigenous people when dealing with the federal
gover nnent .

SENATOR G ESSEL said she did not see that elenent being
excl uded. She opined that lines 8 - 22 on page 4 all focus on
the notion to value and strengthen the resilience of conmunities
and respect and integrate the culture, |anguage, and know edge

of Arctic peoples. They all enphasis a seat at the table,
especially (C - enploy integrated, strategic planning that
considers scientific, local, and traditional know edge. She said
to call it out in terns of managenent decision making, raises

concerns of the interpretation. She suggested leaving it
br oader .

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON referred to page 3, lines 13 - 15, the
"need to collaborate with all levels of governnent, tribes,
i ndustry, and nongover nnent al or gani zati ons to achi eve
transparent and inclusive Arctic decision mking." In the
codified section, all subjects are included. He said the
commi ssion | earned a new phrase in Kotzebue; a new definition of
"non-governnent organizations" is called ENGOs, wth the E
standing for "environment." He said ENGO s are not included in

this section.

11:47:19 AM

SENATOR OLSON pointed out if you don't consult the |ocal people,
you don't get all the opinions. The l|egislators and the Al aska
Federation of Natives were of one mndset; however, the people
south of the Brooks Range were not in agreenent.

11: 48: 09 AM
CO- CHAIR MCGQUI RE cal | ed Senat or Bishop's forthcom ng anmendnent -
Amendrent 1.

SENATOR BI SHOP noved to adopt conceptual Amendnent |, to add a
new (G under Section 2: "Encourage the connection between the
state public and private education systens wth business,

SENATE ARC COWM TTEE - 6- February 19, 2015



government, and labor to ensure that state residents are
receiving workforce readiness skills throughout the education
process."

SENATOR COGHI LL obj ect ed.

SENATOR BI SHOP explained that Anendment | fits into the spirit
of the entire bill. He said at the beginning of the neeting, the
comm ttee heard nunerous indigenous people talk about the value
of education and the ability to make a living in the Arctic. He
read the anendnent: "Encourage the connection between the state
public and private education systens wi th business, governnent,
and | abor to ensure that state residents are receiving workforce
readi ness skills throughout the education process."”

He said the state is already doing that but he felt that it was
inperative that it is stated in the bill to neet the spirit of
the intent of the people living in the Arctic.

11:49: 55 AM

CO CHAIR G ESSEL countered that the state has no jurisdiction
over private education systens. The amendnent calls out three
entities - business, governnment, and |abor, as though |abor were
a specific entity when 87 percent of the state is not a nenber
of a labor union. She said she is not sure what governnment's
role in the workforce is. She argued that there are multiple
wor kf orce plans in place. She suggested reworking the anendnent
to call out a continued effort on workforce readiness and the
connecti on between education and busi ness.

SENATOR BISHOP clarified that [|abor does not inply organized
| abor. Training plans through the Departnent of Labor enconpass
all types of education systens to deliver the workforce; public
and private. This is not reinventing the wheel; the delivery
mechani sns are in the state. He said his intention is to enbed
them in the Arctic policy to ensure that all Al askans have the
skills necessary to work in the Arctic.

11: 52: 32 AM
At ease

11:53: 26 AM

CO CHAI R MCGQUI RE brought the nmeeting back to order. She said the
commttee would work on an anendnent on workforce devel opnment in
the Arctic. She recessed the neeting to a call of the chair.
[ The committee did not reconvene wuntil the next schedul ed
meeting on 2/26/15.]

SENATE ARC COWM TTEE -7- February 19, 2015



